
 1  

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 
 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 
 
     Plaintiff, 
 
            v. 
 
START CONNECTING LLC, d/b/a USA 
Student Debt Relief, a Florida limited 
liability company; 
 
START CONNECTING SAS, d/b/a USA 
Student Debt Relief, a Colombia 
corporation; 
 
DOUGLAS R. GOODMAN, individually 
and as an officer of START 
CONNECTING LLC; 
 
DORIS E. GALLON-GOODMAN, 
individually and as an officer of START 
CONNECTING LLC; and 
 
JUAN S. ROJAS, individually and as an 
officer of START CONNECTING LLC 
and START CONNECTING SAS, 
 
    Defendants. 

 

 

 

 
Case No. 8:24-cv-1626-KKM-AAS 
 
 
 
 
 

 
JOINT MOTION BY PLAINTIFF AND SETTLING DEFENDANTS TO 

SUBMIT AND ENTER PROPOSED FINAL STIPULATED ORDER 
 

 Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”), and 

settling Defendants Start Connecting LLC, Douglas R. Goodman, and Doris 

E. Gallon-Goodman (the “Settling Defendants”) jointly move this Court for 
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leave to promptly submit the proposed final stipulated order that has now 

been approved by all parties to the settlement embodied in the proposed final 

stipulated order,1 and for the Court to enter the proposed final stipulated 

order once it is submitted. See M.D. Fla. L.R. 3.01(j) (requiring leave of court 

to submit proposed orders and judgments). The proposed final stipulated 

order is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. Once entered by this Court, the 

proposed final stipulated order would resolve all claims asserted in the 

Complaint against the Settling Defendants and represent a final judgment as 

to those three Defendants. 

 The FTC’s nine-count Complaint against Defendants’ student loan debt 

relief operation seeks injunctive and monetary relief against all five 

Defendants under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) & 

57b, for claims asserted under Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45; see 

(Doc. 1 at ¶¶ 60–71) (Counts I–III alleging violations of Section 5 of the FTC 

Act), as well as claims asserted under other laws enforceable by the FTC 

under Section 19 of the FTC Act, see (Doc. 1 at ¶¶ 72–93) (Counts IV–VIII 

asserting violations of the Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. pt. 310); 

 
1 In addition to the FTC and the Settling Defendants, the Receiver has signed the proposed 
final stipulated order. The FTC understands that the Receiver and/or the Settling 
Defendants may separately seek Court approval of an additional settlement agreement 
resolving any claims the Receiver may have against the Settling Defendants. Such claims 
are separate and distinct from the claims resolved in the parties’ proposed final stipulated 
order discussed in this motion. See, e.g., (Doc. 151 at 16). 
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(Doc. 1 at ¶¶ 94–102) (Count IX asserting violations of the Gramm-Leach-

Bliley Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6821(a)(2)). See generally FTC v. Simple Health Plans 

LLC, 58 F.4th 1322, 1329–30 (11th Cir. 2023) (Section 13(b) of the FTC Act 

authorizes “prospective injunctive relief,” and Section 19 authorizes “the 

refund of money” to consumers) (alteration and internal quotation marks 

omitted). The proposed final stipulated order resolves the FTC’s claims as to 

the Settling Defendants through monetary and injunctive relief that the FTC 

and the Settling Defendants agree is appropriate based on the Complaint’s 

allegations. The proposed order includes a monetary judgment of 

$7,304,737.29, which is partially suspended in light of financial information 

provided by the Settling Defendants, and injunctive terms prohibiting the 

Settling Defendants from engaging in similar misconduct to that alleged in 

the FTC’s Complaint, along with additional provisions allowing the FTC to 

monitor compliance with the proposed order.  

The terms of the proposed stipulated order are substantially similar to 

other recent FTC settlements entered by courts in this District, see, e.g., 

Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment & Other 

Relief, Dkt. 97, FTC v. Legion Media, LLC, Case No. 8:24-cv-1459-JLB-AAS 

(M.D. Fla. Sept. 16, 2024); Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction, 

Monetary Judgment & Other Relief, Dkt. 12, FTC v. WealthPress Holdings 

LLC, Case No. 3:23-cv-46-MMH-LLL (M.D. Fla. Mar. 28, 2023); Stipulated 
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Order for Permanent Injunction & Monetary Relief, Dkt. 116, FTC v. Rando, 

Case No. 3:22-cv-487-TJC-MCR (M.D. Fla. Jan. 10, 2023); Stipulated Order 

for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment & Other Relief, Dkt. 76, 

FTC v. Graham, Case No. 3:22-cv-655-MMH-JBT (M.D. Fla. Jan. 4, 2023); 

Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment & Other 

Relief, Dkt. 13, FTC v. Benefytt Techs., Inc., Case No. 8:22-cv-1794-TPB-JSS 

(M.D. Fla. Aug. 11, 2022), and also substantially similar to final orders issued 

in cases the FTC has litigated to judgment in this Circuit, see, e.g., Final 

Order for Permanent Injunction & Monetary Relief, Dkt. 496, FTC v. Simple 

Health Plans LLC, Case No. 0:18-cv-62593-DPG (S.D. Fla. Feb. 8, 2024), 

appeal dismissed, 2024 WL 3311392 (11th Cir.); Final Order for Permanent 

Injunction & Monetary Relief, Dkt. 266, FTC v. Pointbreak Media, LLC, Case 

No. 0:18-cv-61017-CMA (S.D. Fla. Apr. 25, 2019); Final Order for Permanent 

Injunction & Monetary Relief, Dkt. 292, FTC v. Lanier Law, LLC, Case 

No. 3:14-cv-786-MMH-PDB (M.D. Fla. Aug. 12, 2016), aff’d, 715 F. App’x 970 

(11th Cir. 2017). As previously ordered, see (Doc. 96), once the Court enters 

final judgment as to the Settling Defendants, the FTC will then have 35 days 

to seek a default judgment under Rule 55(b) against the remaining 

Defendants, Start Connecting SAS and Juan S. Rojas, who are based in 

Colombia and already in Rule 55(a) default, see (Doc. 91). 

* * * 
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For the foregoing reasons, the FTC and the Settling Defendants jointly 

request leave under Local Rule 3.01(j) to promptly submit a proposed final 

stipulated order that represents the parties’ settlement of the FTC’s claims 

against the Settling Defendants, and respectfully move the Court to enter the 

proposed order once it is submitted. 

Dated: May 22, 2025  
Respectfully submitted, 
 

/s/ Nathan H. Nash 
Nathan Nash 
D’Laney Gielow 
Federal Trade Commission 
Midwest Region 
230 S. Dearborn, Suite 3030 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 
Phone: (312) 960-5634 
E-mail:  nnash@ftc.gov 
              dgielow@ftc.gov 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 
 

/s/ Matthieu Goddeyne 
John A. Schifino 
Matthieu Goddeyne 
Melanie B. Senosiain 
Gregory L. Pierson 
Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 
401 E. Jackson St., Suite 1500 
Tampa, Florida 33602 
Phone: (813) 228-9080 
Facsimile: (813) 228-6739 
Email: jschifino@gunster.com 
            mgoddeyne@gunster.com  
            msenosiain@gunster.com 
            gpierson@gunster.com  

 
Attorneys for Settling Defendants 
START CONNECTING LLC, 
DOUGLAS R. GOODMAN & DORIS 
E. GALLON-GOODMAN 
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LOCAL RULE 3.01(g) CERTIFICATION 

 Pursuant to Local Rule 3.01(g), I certify that I consulted with counsel 

for the Settling Defendants and the Court-appointed Receiver about the relief 

requested in this motion. The Settling Defendants support and have joined 

this motion, and the Receiver does not oppose the motion. I did not consult 

with defaulted Defendant Rojas, who no longer responds to communications 

about this case, nor did I consult with Hamlet Garcia, Jr., who is not a party 

to this case. 

 /s/ Nathan H. Nash 
 Attorney for Plaintiff FTC 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that, on or about May 22, 2025, I filed this Motion using the 

Court’s electronic filing system, which will deliver a copy of this filing to all 

counsel of record. I further certify that I am causing a copy of this motion to 

be sent via email to the following pro se defaulted Defendant: 

Juan S. Rojas 
jayrojas423@gmail.com 
Calle 16 N # 6N-21  
Oficina (401) 
Cali, VC 760045 
Colombia  
 
 

   
 
 

/s/ Nathan H. Nash 
 Attorney for Plaintiff FTC 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

TAMPA DIVISION 
 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 
 
     Plaintiff, 
 
            v. 
 
START CONNECTING LLC, d/b/a USA 
Student Debt Relief, a Florida limited 
liability company; 
 
START CONNECTING SAS, d/b/a USA 
Student Debt Relief, a Colombia 
corporation; 
 
DOUGLAS R. GOODMAN, individually 
and as an officer of START 
CONNECTING LLC; 
 
DORIS E. GALLON-GOODMAN, 
individually and as an officer of START 
CONNECTING LLC; and 
 
JUAN S. ROJAS, individually and as an 
officer of START CONNECTING LLC 
and START CONNECTING SAS, 
 
    Defendants. 

 

 

 

 
Case No. 8:24-cv-1626-KKM-AAS 
 
[Proposed] STIPULATED 
ORDER FOR PERMANENT 
INJUNCTION, MONETARY 
JUDGMENT, AND OTHER 
RELIEF AS TO DEFENDANTS 
START CONNECTING LLC, 
DOUGLAS R. GOODMAN, AND 
DORIS E. GALLON-GOODMAN 
 

 
Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission” or “FTC”), filed 

its Complaint for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment, and Other 

Relief in this matter, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) & 57b, Section 6(b) of the 
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Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act 

(“Telemarketing Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 6105(b), and Section 522(a) of the Gramm-

Leach-Bliley Act (“GLB Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 6822(a). (Doc. 1). The FTC and 

Defendants Start Connecting LLC, Douglas R. Goodman, and Doris E. 

Gallon-Goodman—the “Settling Defendants”—stipulate to the entry of this 

Stipulated Order for Permanent Injunction, Monetary Judgment, and Other 

Relief (“Order”) to resolve all matters in dispute in this action between them.  

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as follows:  

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter. 

2. The Complaint charges that Settling Defendants participated in 

unlawful acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 45, the Telemarketing Sales Rule (the “TSR”), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, and 

Section 521 of the GLB Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6821, in connection with Defendants’ 

marketing and sale of student loan debt relief services.   

3. Settling Defendants neither admit nor deny any of the 

allegations in the Complaint, except as specifically stated in this Order. Only 

for purposes of this action, Settling Defendants admit the facts necessary to 

establish jurisdiction.   

4. Settling Defendants waive any claim that they may have under 

the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution 
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of this action through the date of this Order, and agree to bear their own 

costs and attorney fees. 

5. Settling Defendants waive all rights to appeal or otherwise 

challenge or contest this order. 

DEFINITIONS 

 For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply: 

A. “Assisting Others” includes: (a) performing customer service 

functions, including receiving or responding to consumer complaints; 

(b) formulating or providing, or arranging for the formulation or provision of, 

any advertising or marketing material, including any telephone sales script, 

direct mail solicitation, or the design, text, or use of images of any Internet 

website, email, or other electronic communication; (c) formulating or 

providing, or arranging for the formulation or provision of, any marketing 

support material or service, including web or Internet Protocol addresses or 

domain name registration for any Internet websites, affiliate marketing 

services, or media placement services; (d) providing names of, or assisting in 

the generation of, potential customers; (e) performing marketing, billing, 

payment processing, or payment services of any kind; or (f) acting or serving 

as an owner, officer, director, manager, or principal of any entity.  

B. “Consumer Review” means a consumer’s evaluation, or a 

purported consumer’s evaluation, of a product, service, or business that is 
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submitted by the consumer or purported consumer and that is published to a 

website or platform dedicated in whole or in part to receiving and displaying 

such evaluations. 

C. “Consumer Testimonial” means an advertising or promotional 

message (including verbal statements, demonstrations, or depictions of the 

name, signature, likeness, or other identifying personal characteristics of an 

individual) that consumers are likely to believe reflects the opinions, beliefs, 

or experiences of a consumer who has purchased, used, or otherwise had 

experience with a product, service, or business. 

D. “Defendant(s)” means the Corporate Defendants and the 

Individual Defendants, individually, collectively, or in any combination.  

1. “Corporate Defendant(s)” means Start Connecting LLC, 

Start Connecting SAS, and each of their subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, 

and assigns. 

2. “Individual Defendant(s)” means Douglas R. Goodman, 

Doris E. Gallon-Goodman, and Juan S. Rojas, individually, collectively, or in 

any combination. 

3. “Settling Defendant(s)” means the Settling Corporate 

Defendant and the Settling Individual Defendants, individually, collectively, 

or in any combination. 
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4. “Settling Corporate Defendant” means Start 

Connecting LLC and each of its subsidiaries, affiliates, successors, and 

assigns. 

5. “Settling Individual Defendant(s)” means Douglas R. 

Goodman and Doris E. Gallon-Goodman, individually, collectively, or in any 

combination. 

E. “Fake Indicators of Social Media Influence” means 

indicators of social media influence generated by bots, purported individual 

accounts not associated with a real individual, accounts created with a real 

individual’s personal information without their consent, or hijacked accounts, 

or that otherwise do not reflect a real individual’s or entity’s activities, 

opinions, findings, or experiences. 

F. “Non-Party Receivership Entity(ies)” means Zage Group, 

LLC, G&G International Consultants SAS, LEADSR4US, LLC, and any 

other non-party entity that has conducted any business related to 

Defendants’ student loan debt relief services business, including receipt of 

assets derived from any activity that is the subject of the Complaint in this 

matter, and which the Receiver has reason to believe is owned or controlled 

in whole or in part by any Defendant. 
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G. “Person” means a natural person, organization, or other legal 

entity, including a corporation, partnership, proprietorship, association, 

cooperative, or any other group or combination acting as an entity. 

H. “Receiver” means Jared J. Perez. 

I. “Receivership Entity(ies)” means the Corporate Defendant(s), 

as well as Zage Group, LLC; G & G International Consultants SAS; 

LEADSR4US, LLC; and any other entity that has conducted any business 

related to Defendants’ student loan debt relief services business, including 

receipt of assets derived from any activity that is the subject of the Complaint 

in this matter, and which the Receiver has reason to believe is owned or 

controlled in whole or in part by any Defendant. 

J. “Secured or Unsecured Debt Relief Product or Service” 

means: 

1. With respect to any mortgage, loan, debt, or obligation 

between a Person and one or more secured or unsecured creditors or debt 

collectors, any product, service, plan, or program represented, expressly or by 

implication, to: 

a.  Stop, prevent, or postpone any mortgage or deed of 

foreclosure sale for a Person’s dwelling, any other sale of collateral, any 

repossession of a Person’s dwelling or other collateral, or otherwise save a 

Person’s dwelling or other collateral from foreclosure or repossession; 
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b. Negotiate, obtain, or arrange a modification, or 

renegotiate, settle, reduce, or in any way alter any terms of the mortgage, 

loan, debt, or obligation, including a reduction in the amount of interest, 

principal balance, monthly payments, or fees owed by a Person to a secured 

or unsecured creditor or debt collector; 

c. Obtain any forbearance or modification in the timing 

of payments from any secured or unsecured holder or servicer of any 

mortgage, loan, debt, or obligation; 

d. Negotiate, obtain, or arrange any extension of the 

period of time within which a Person may (i) cure his or her default on the 

mortgage, loan, debt, or obligation; (ii) reinstate his or her mortgage, loan, 

debt, or obligation; (iii) redeem a dwelling or other collateral; or (iv) exercise 

any right to reinstate the mortgage, loan, debt, or obligation or redeem a 

dwelling or other collateral; 

e. Obtain any waiver of an acceleration clause or 

balloon payment contained in any promissory note or contract secured by any 

dwelling or other collateral; or 

f. Negotiate, obtain, or arrange (i) a short sale of a 

dwelling or other collateral, (ii) a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure, or (iii) any other 

disposition of a mortgage, loan, debt, or obligation other than a sale to a third 

party that is not the secured or unsecured loan holder. 
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 The foregoing shall include any manner of claimed assistance, 

including auditing or examining a Person’s application for the mortgage, 

loan, debt, or obligation. 

2. With respect to any loan, debt, or obligation between a 

Person and one or more unsecured creditors or debt collectors, any product, 

service, plan, or program represented expressly or by implication to: 

 a. Repay one or more unsecured loans, debts, or 

obligations; or 

 b. Combine unsecured loans, debts, or obligations into 

one or more new loans, debts, or obligations. 

K. “Telemarketing” means any plan, program, or campaign which 

is conducted to induce the purchase of goods or services by use of one or more 

telephones, whether or not covered by the Telemarketing Sales Rule.  

ORDER 

I. BAN ON SECURED OR UNSECURED DEBT RELIEF 
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

IT IS ORDERED that Settling Defendants are permanently 

restrained and enjoined from advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for 

sale, selling, or Assisting Others in the advertising, marketing, promoting, 

offering for sale, or selling, any Secured or Unsecured Debt Relief Product or 

Service. 
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II. BAN ON TELEMARKETING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Corporate Defendant and 

Settling Individual Defendant Douglas R. Goodman are permanently 

restrained and enjoined from participating in Telemarketing, whether 

directly or through an intermediary, including by consulting, brokering, 

planning, investing, or advising others regarding Telemarketing.  

III. PROHIBITED TELEMARKETING PRACTICES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Individual Defendant 

Doris E. Gallon-Goodman, her officers, agents, employees, and all other 

Persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or through an 

intermediary, in connection with Telemarketing, are permanently restrained 

and enjoined from violating, or Assisting Others in violating, the 

Telemarketing Sales Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, a copy of which is attached as 

ATTACHMENT A. 

IV. PROHIBITED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants and their 

officers, agents, employees, and all other Persons in active concert or 

participation with any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, 

whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with the advertising, 

marketing, promoting, offering for sale, or selling of any product or service, 
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are permanently restrained and enjoined from engaging in, or Assisting 

Others engaged in, the following: 

A.  Misrepresenting, expressly or by implication:  

1. That any Person is affiliated with, endorsed or approved by, 

or otherwise connected to any other Person; government 

entity; public, nonprofit, or other noncommercial program; 

or any other program; 

2. The nature, expertise, position, or job title of any Person 

who provides any product, service, plan, or program; 

3. Any material aspect of the nature or terms of any refund, 

cancellation, exchange, or repurchase policy, including the 

likelihood of a consumer obtaining a full or partial refund, 

or the circumstances in which a full or partial refund will 

be granted to the consumer; 

4. The ability to improve or otherwise affect a consumer’s 

credit record, credit history, credit rating, or ability to 

obtain credit, including that a consumer’s credit record, 

credit history, credit rating, or ability to obtain credit can 

be improved by permanently removing negative 

information from the consumer’s credit record or history 

even where such information is accurate and not obsolete; 
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5. That a consumer will save money;  

6. That any Consumer Review or Consumer Testimonial is 

truthful or by an actual user of such product or service; or 

7. Any other fact material to consumers concerning any good 

or service, such as the total costs; any restrictions, 

limitations, or conditions; or any aspect of its performance, 

efficacy, nature, or central characteristics;  

B. Representing, expressly or by implication, the benefits, 

performance, or efficacy of any product or service, unless the representation 

is non-misleading and, at the time such representation is made, that Settling 

Defendants possess and rely upon competent and reliable evidence that is 

sufficient in quality and quantity based on standards generally accepted in 

relevant fields, when considered in light of the entire body of relevant and 

reliable evidence, to substantiate that the representation is true;  

C. Paying or otherwise providing incentives for any Consumer 

Review or Consumer Testimonial; 

D.  Using or disseminating any Consumer Review or Consumer 

Testimonial where there is a relationship between the author of the Review 

or Testimonial and any Settling Defendant that might materially affect the 

weight or credibility of the Review or Testimonial;  
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E.  Purchasing or procuring Fake Indicators of Social Media 

Influence; 

F.  Providing consumers with documents consummating a sale of a 

product or service in a language different from the one used when offering 

such product or service for sale to the consumer;  

G. Obtaining or attempting to obtain, or causing to be disclosed or 

attempting to cause to be disclosed, customer information of a financial 

institution—including bank account routing number, credit or debit card 

information, loan information, or login credentials—by making false, 

fictitious, or fraudulent representations to any consumer or financial 

institution; or  

H. Violating the GLB Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6801–09, 6821–27, a copy of 

which is attached as ATTACHMENT B. 

V. MONETARY JUDGMENT AND PARTIAL SUSPENSION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Judgment in the amount of seven million, three hundred four 

thousand, seven hundred thirty-seven Dollars and twenty-nine cents 

($7,304,737.29) is entered in favor of the Commission against Settling 

Defendants, jointly and severally, as monetary relief. The liability of Settling 

Defendants for the judgment shall be joint and several with any other 

Defendants to the extent subsequently ordered.  
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B. In partial satisfaction of the judgment against Settling 

Defendants: 

1. Settling Individual Defendants are ordered to pay to the 

Commission $351,802.12, which, as Settling Individual Defendants 

stipulate, their undersigned counsel holds in escrow for no purpose 

other than payment to the Commission. Such payment must be made 

within 7 days of entry of this order by electronic funds transfer in 

accordance with instructions provided by a representative of the 

Commission.  

2. Any financial or brokerage institution, payment processor, 

escrow agent, title company, commodity trading company, business 

entity, or person, whether located within the United States or outside 

the United States, that holds, controls, or maintains accounts or assets 

of, on behalf of, or for the benefit of, Settling Corporate Defendant or 

any Non-Party Receivership Entity, whether real or personal, whether 

located within the United States or outside the United States, shall, 

within 10 days of receipt of a copy of this Order, turn over such 

accounts or assets to the Receiver or his designated agent, including: 

i. JP Morgan Chase Bank shall transfer to the Receiver 

or his designated agent all funds, if any, in: 
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a) Account number xxxx7771 in the name of Start 

Connecting LLC; and  

b) Account number xxxx6555 in the name of Zage 

Group LLC;   

ii. Truist Bank shall transfer to the Receiver or his 

designated agent all funds, if any, in:  

a) Account number xxxx1342 in the name of 

LEADSR4US, LLC; and  

b) Account numbers xxxx3611, xxxx3710, 

xxxx4160, and xxxx1059 in the name of Start 

Connecting LLC; and 

iii. Bancolombia S.A. shall transfer to the Receiver or his 

designated agent all funds, if any, in: 

a) Account number xxxxxxx3381 in the name of 

G&G International Consultants SAS.  

3. Any financial or brokerage institution, payment processor, 

escrow agent, title company, commodity trading company, business 

entity, or person, whether located within the United States or outside 

the United States, that holds, controls, or maintains accounts or assets 

of, on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any Settling Individual Defendant, 

whether real or personal, whether located within the United States or 
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outside the United States, shall, within ten (10) days from receipt of a 

copy of this Order, turn over such accounts or assets to the FTC or its 

designated agent, including: 

i. JP Morgan Chase Bank shall transfer to the FTC or its 

designated agent all holdings in:  

a) Account numbers xxxx3109 and xxxx5160 in 

the name of Doris Gallon-Goodman; and 

b) Account number xxxx7630 in the name of 

Douglas Goodman and Doris Gallon-Goodman;   

ii. Truist Bank shall transfer to the FTC or its designated 

agent all holdings in: 

a) Account numbers xxxx4804 and xxxx9920 in 

the name of Douglas Goodman and Doris 

Gallon-Goodman; 

b) Account numbers xxxx3270 and xxxx8291 in 

the name of Douglas R. Goodman and Douglas 

Bakie Goodman; and 

c) Account number xxxx2314 in the name of 

Douglas Goodman; 

iii. Paypal, Inc. shall transfer to the FTC or its designated 

agent all holdings in Venmo account number 
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XXXX1905 in the name of Doris E. Gallon-Goodman; 

and 

iv. Edward D. Jones & Co., L.P. shall liquidate and 

transfer to the FTC or its designated agent all holdings 

in: 

a) Account number XXX-XX634 in the name of the 

Goodman Trust, of which Douglas Goodman 

and Doris Gallon-Goodman are trustees; and 

b) Account number XXX-XX752 in the name of 

Doris Gallon-Goodman. 

C. Upon such payment and completion of the payment, transfers, 

and liquidations specified in Subsection V.B, the remainder of the judgment 

is suspended, subject to the Subsections below.   

D. The asset freeze is modified to permit the transfers identified in 

Subsection V.B. Upon completion of those transfers, the asset freeze as to 

Settling Defendants is dissolved. Following entry of this Order, a financial 

institution may rely on a letter from the Commission that an asset freeze has 

been dissolved. Settling Defendants must fully cooperate with the 

Commission and the Receiver as to the asset freeze and the Receivership. 

Settling Defendants must take all steps reasonable or necessary to assist in 

the transfer of each asset as identified in this Section. If requested to execute 
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appropriate documents, such as to liquidate, transfer, or assign any frozen 

asset, Settling Defendants must execute such document within 3 days of a 

written request from a representative of the Commission or the Receiver. 

E. The Commission’s agreement to the suspension of part of the 

judgment is expressly premised upon the truthfulness, accuracy, and 

completeness of Settling Defendants’ sworn financial statements and related 

documents (collectively, “financial representations”) submitted to the 

Commission, namely: 

1. The Financial Statement of Settling Individual Defendant 

Douglas R. Goodman, signed on September 20, 2024, including the 

attachments; 

2. The Financial Statement of Settling Individual Defendant 

Doris E. Gallon-Goodman, signed on September 20, 2024, including the 

attachments; 

3. The Financial Statement of Corporate Defendant Start 

Connecting LLC signed by Settling Individual Defendant Douglas R. 

Goodman on September 20, 2024, including the attachments; 

4. The additional documentation submitted by email from 

Settling Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to Commission 

counsel D’Laney Gielow and Taylor Arana dated September 30, 2024 
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and attaching Settling Defendants’ responses to questions posed by the 

FTC; 

5. The Sworn Declaration of Settling Individual Defendant 

Douglas R. Goodman, signed on October 30, 2024, including the 

attachments; 

6. The Sworn Declaration of Settling Individual Defendant 

Doris E. Gallon-Goodman, signed on October 30, 2024, including the 

attachments;  

7. The Sworn Declaration of Settling Corporate Defendant 

Start Connecting LLC signed by Settling Individual Defendant Doris E. 

Gallon-Goodman on October 30, 2024, including the attachments;  

8. The disclosures and attached documentation submitted by 

email from Settling Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to 

Commission Counsel Nathan Nash and D’Laney Gielow on January 21, 

2025, and February 14, 2025, regarding transactions shown on 

statements for the two Lake Michigan Credit Union bank accounts 

opened in the name of the Settling Individual Defendants pursuant to 

Section III.F of the stipulated preliminary injunction order, (Doc. 69 

at 15); 

9. The disclosures submitted by email from Settling 

Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to Commission counsel 
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Nathan Nash and D’Laney Gielow dated February 21, 2025, March 12, 

2025, and April 4, 2025, providing bank statements and explanation of 

notable transactions for the two Lake Michigan Credit Union bank 

accounts opened in the name of the Settling Individual Defendants 

pursuant to Section III.F of the stipulated preliminary injunction order, 

(Doc. 69 at 15); 

10. The disclosures submitted by email from Settling 

Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to Commission counsel 

Nathan Nash and D’Laney Gielow dated April 3, 2025, providing 

details regarding the source of payments for legal expenses;  

11. The disclosure submitted by email from Settling 

Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to Commission counsel 

Nathan Nash and D’Laney Gielow dated April 3, 2025, stating that 

Settling Defendants received a total of $278,073.43 in insurance 

proceeds intended to cover hurricane-related damage sustained in 2024 

to the real property located at 1412 Pine Bay Drive, Sarasota, Florida 

34231, and that all such proceeds would be used for settlement of the 

instant action; and  

12. The disclosure submitted by email from Settling 

Defendants’ counsel Matthieu Goddeyne to Commission counsel 

Nathan Nash and D’Laney Gielow dated April 7, 2025, stating that 
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Settling Defendants received approximately $5,000 in monetary gifts 

from their friends and family for hurricane-related costs and regarding 

the future sale of their home. 

F. The suspension of the monetary judgment in Subsection V.A will 

be lifted as to any Settling Defendant if, upon motion by the Commission, the 

Court finds that any Settling Defendant failed to disclose any material asset, 

materially misstated the value of any asset, or made any other material 

misstatement or omission in the financial representations identified above. 

G. If suspension of the monetary judgment is lifted, the judgment 

becomes immediately due as to that Settling Defendant in the amount 

specified in Subsection V.A (which the parties stipulate only for purposes of 

this Section represents the consumer injury alleged in the Complaint), less 

any payment previously made pursuant to this Section, plus interest 

computed from the date of entry of this Order.  

VI. ADDITIONAL MONETARY PROVISIONS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Settling Defendants relinquish dominion and all legal and 

equitable right, title, and interest in all assets transferred pursuant to this 

Order and may not seek the return of any assets.  

B. The facts alleged in the Complaint will be taken as true, without 

further proof, in any subsequent civil litigation by or on behalf of the 
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Commission, including in a proceeding to enforce its rights to any payment or 

monetary judgment pursuant to this Order, such as a nondischargeability 

complaint in any bankruptcy case. 

C. The facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements 

necessary to sustain an action by the Commission pursuant to 

Section 523(a)(2)(A) of the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. § 523(a)(2)(A), and 

this Order will have collateral estoppel effect for such purposes.  

D. Each Settling Defendant acknowledges that Settling Defendants’ 

Employer Identification Number, Social Security Number, or other Taxpayer 

Identification Number (“TIN”), including all TINs that Defendants previously 

provided, may be used by the Commission for reporting and other lawful 

purposes, including collecting on any delinquent amount arising out of this 

Order in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701. 

E. All money received by the Commission pursuant to this Order 

may be deposited in a fund administered by the Commission or its designee 

to be used for consumer relief, such as redress and any attendant expenses 

for the administration of any redress fund. If a representative of the 

Commission decides that direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially 

impracticable or money remains after such redress is completed, the 

Commission may apply any remaining money for such related relief 

(including consumer information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably 
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related to Defendants’ practices alleged in the Complaint. Any money not 

used for relief is to be deposited to the U.S. Treasury. Settling Defendants 

have no right to challenge any actions the Commission or its representatives 

may take pursuant to this Subsection. 

VII. CUSTOMER INFORMATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants and their 

officers, agents, employees, and all other persons in active concert or 

participation with any of them, who receive actual notice of this Order, are 

permanently restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly:  

A. Failing to provide sufficient customer information to enable the 

Commission to efficiently administer consumer redress. Settling Defendants 

represent that they have provided this redress information to the 

Commission. If a representative of the Commission requests in writing any 

information related to redress, Settling Defendants must provide it, in the 

form prescribed by the Commission, within 14 days; 

B. Disclosing, using, or benefitting from customer information, 

including the name, address, telephone number, email address, Social 

Security number, FSA ID, other identifying information, or any data that 

enables access to a customer’s account (including a credit card, bank, or other 

financial account) that any Defendant obtained prior to entry of this Order in 
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connection with the marketing and sale of Secured or Unsecured Debt Relief 

Products or Services; and 

C. Failing to destroy such customer information in all forms in their 

possession, custody, or control within 30 days after receiving written 

direction to do so from a representative of the Commission. 

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, 

and may be disclosed, to the extent requested by a government agency or 

required by law, regulation, or court order.  

VIII. COOPERATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants must fully 

cooperate with representatives of the Commission in this case and in any 

investigation related to or associated with the transactions or the occurrences 

that are the subject of the Complaint. Settling Defendants must provide 

truthful and complete information, evidence, and testimony. Settling 

Individual Defendants must appear and Settling Corporate Defendant must 

cause its officers, employees, representatives, or agents to appear for 

interviews, discovery, hearings, trials, and other proceedings that a 

Commission representative may reasonably request upon 5 days’ written 

notice, or other reasonable notice, at such places and times as a Commission 

representative may designate, without the service of a subpoena. 
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IX. CONTINUATION OF RECEIVERSHIP 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Jared J. Perez shall continue as a 

permanent receiver over the Settling Corporate Defendant and the Non-Party 

Receivership Entities with full powers of a permanent receiver, including but 

not limited to those powers set forth in the preliminary injunction (Doc. 69). 

The Receiver is directed to wind up or otherwise dispose of the Settling 

Corporate Defendant and Non-Party Receivership Entities and liquidate all 

assets within 180 days of the date that final judgment is entered as to all 

Corporate Defendants in the case, but any party or the Receiver may request 

that the Court extend the Receiver’s term for good cause. Upon termination of 

the receivership and final payment to the Receiver of all approved fees, costs, 

and expenses, the Receiver shall turn over to the FTC or its designated agent 

all remaining assets in the receivership estate.  

X. ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants obtain 

acknowledgements of receipt of this Order: 

A. Each Settling Defendant, within 7 days of entry of this Order, 

must submit to the Commission an acknowledgement of receipt of this Order 

sworn under penalty of perjury. 

B. For 20 years after entry of this Order, each Settling Individual 

Defendant for any business that such Defendant, individually or collectively 
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with any other Defendants, is the majority owner or controls directly or 

indirectly, and each Settling Corporate Defendant, must deliver a copy of this 

Order to: (1) all principals, officers, directors, and limited liability company 

managers and members; (2) all employees having managerial responsibilities 

for conduct specified in Sections I–IV and all agents and representatives who 

participate in conduct specified in Sections I–IV; and (3) any business entity 

resulting from any change in structure as set forth in the Section titled 

Compliance Reporting. Delivery must occur within 7 days of this Order for 

current personnel. For all others, delivery must occur before they assume 

their responsibilities.  

C. From each individual or entity to which a Settling Defendant 

delivered a copy of this Order, that Defendant must obtain, within 30 days, a 

signed and dated acknowledgement of receipt of this Order. 

XI. COMPLIANCE REPORTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants make timely 

submissions to the Commission: 

A. One year after entry of this Order, each Settling Defendant must 

submit a compliance report, sworn under penalty of perjury: 

1. Each Settling Defendant must: (a) identify the primary 

physical, postal, and email address and telephone number, as 

designated points of contact, which representatives of the Commission 
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may use to communicate with Settling Defendant; (b) identify all of 

that Settling Defendant’s businesses by all of their names, telephone 

numbers, and physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses; 

(c) describe the activities of each business, including the goods and 

services offered, the means of advertising, marketing, and sales, and 

the involvement of any other Defendant (which Settling Defendants 

must describe if they know or should know due to their own 

involvement); (d) describe in detail whether and how that Settling 

Defendant is in compliance with each Section of this Order; and 

(e) provide a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to 

this Order, unless previously submitted to the Commission.  

2. Additionally, each Settling Individual Defendant must: 

(a) identify all telephone numbers and all physical, postal, email and 

Internet addresses, including all residences; (b) identify all business 

activities, including any business for which such Settling Individual 

Defendant performs services whether as an employee or otherwise and 

any entity in which such Settling Individual Defendant has any 

ownership interest; and (c) describe in detail such Settling Individual 

Defendant’s involvement in each such business, including title, role, 

responsibilities, participation, authority, control, and any ownership. 
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B. For 20 years after entry of this Order, each Settling Defendant 

must submit a compliance notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 

14 days of any change in the following: 

1. Each Settling Defendant must report any change in: (a) any 

designated point of contact; or (b) the structure of Settling Corporate 

Defendant or any entity that any Settling Defendant has any 

ownership interest in or controls directly or indirectly that may affect 

compliance obligations arising under this Order, including: creation, 

merger, sale, or dissolution of the entity or any subsidiary, parent, or 

affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject to this Order. 

2. Additionally, each Settling Individual Defendant must 

report any change in: (a) name, including aliases or fictitious name, or 

residence address; or (b) title or role in any business activity, including 

any business for which such Settling Defendant performs services 

whether as an employee or otherwise and any entity in which such 

Settling Defendant has any ownership interest, and identify the name, 

physical address, and any Internet address of the business or entity. 

C. Each Settling Defendant must submit to the Commission notice 

of the filing of any bankruptcy petition, insolvency proceeding, or similar 

proceeding by or against such Settling Defendant within 14 days of its filing. 

D. Any submission to the Commission required by this Order to be 
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sworn under penalty of perjury must be true and accurate and comply with 

28 U.S.C. § 1746, such as by concluding: “I declare under penalty of perjury 

under the laws of the United States of America that the foregoing is true and 

correct. Executed on: _____” and supplying the date, signatory’s full name, 

title (if applicable), and signature.  

E. Unless otherwise directed by a Commission representative in 

writing, all submissions to the Commission pursuant to this Order must be 

emailed to DEbrief@ftc.gov or sent by overnight courier (not the U.S. Postal 

Service) to: Associate Director for Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer 

Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, 

Washington, DC 20580. The subject line must begin: FTC v. Start Connecting 

LLC, Matter No. X250003.  

XII. RECORDKEEPING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Settling Defendants must create 

certain records for 20 years after entry of this Order, and retain each such 

record for 5 years. Specifically, Settling Corporate Defendant and each 

Settling Individual Defendant, for any business that such Settling Individual 

Defendant, individually or collectively with any other Defendants, is a 

majority owner or controls directly or indirectly, must create and retain the 

following records:  

A. accounting records showing the revenues from all goods or 
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services sold; 

B. personnel records showing, for each person providing services, 

whether as an employee or otherwise, that person’s: name; addresses; 

telephone numbers; job title or position; dates of service; and (if applicable) 

the reason for termination; 

C. records of all consumer complaints and refund requests, whether 

received directly or indirectly, such as through a third party, and any 

response; 

D. all records necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each 

provision of this Order, including all submissions to the Commission; and 

E. a copy of each unique advertisement or other marketing material. 

XIII. COMPLIANCE MONITORING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for purposes of monitoring 

Settling Defendants’ compliance with this Order, including the financial 

representations upon which part of the judgment was suspended and any 

failure to transfer any assets as required by this Order:  

A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from a 

representative of the Commission, each Settling Defendant must submit 

additional compliance reports or other requested information, which must be 

sworn under penalty of perjury; appear for depositions; and produce 

documents for inspection and copying. The Commission is also authorized to 
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obtain discovery, without further leave of court, using any of the procedures 

prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 (including depositions 

by remote means), 31, 33, 34, 36, 45, and 69. 

B. For matters concerning this Order, the Commission is authorized 

to communicate directly with each Settling Defendant, who may have counsel 

present. Settling Defendants must permit representatives of the Commission 

to interview any employee or other person affiliated with any Settling 

Defendant who has agreed to such an interview. The person interviewed may 

have counsel present. 

C. The Commission may use all other lawful means, including 

posing through its representatives as consumers, suppliers, or other 

individuals or entities, to Settling Defendants or any individual or entity 

associated with Settling Defendants, without the necessity of identification or 

prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits the Commission’s lawful use of 

compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§§ 49, 57b-1. 

D. Upon written request from a representative of the Commission, 

any consumer reporting agency must furnish consumer reports concerning 

Settling Individual Defendants, pursuant to Section 604(a)(1) of the Fair 

Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(a)(1).   
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XIV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of 

this matter for purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of 

this Order. 

 ORDERED in Tampa, Florida, this ____ day of _______________, 2025. 

 

 _______________________________________ 
HON. KATHRYN KIMBALL MIZELLE 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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ATTACHMENT A 
Telemarketing Sales Rule 

16 C.F.R. Part 310 
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ATTACHMENT B 
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act 

15 U.S.C. §§ 6801–09, 6821–27 
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